
POLK CITY 

City Commission Meeting (7 pm) 

February 15, 2021 Polk City Government Center 
123 Broadway Blvd., SE 

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Joe LaCascia 

INVOCATION - Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Joe LaCascia 

ROLL CALL - Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 

PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

PUBLIC COMMENT - ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit comments to 3 minutes) 

AGENDA 

1. General Discussion - Updates 

CITY MANAGER ITEMS 

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 

COMMISSIONER ITEMS 
Vice Mayor Kimsey 
Commissioner Blethen 
Commissioner Carroll 
Commissioner Harper 
Mayor LaCascia 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

Please note: Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the 
City Commission with respect to any matter considered during this meeting, he or she will need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based. In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act, a person with disabilities needing any special 
accommodations to participate in city meetings should contact the Office of the City Clerk, Polk City Government 
Center, 123 Broadway, Polk City, Florida 33868 Telephone (863) 984-1375. The City of Polk City may take action on 
any matter during this meeting, including items that are not set forth within this agenda. Minutes of the City Commission 
meetings may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but are not transcribed verbatim. 
Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may arrange with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or arrange to have 
a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be at the expense of the 
requesting party 



CONSENT AGENDA 
February 15, 2021 

MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT 
AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion, and 
add it to the regular agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever category 
best applies to the subject. 

A. CITY CLERK 
1. Accept minutes - January 19, 2021 - City Commission Meeting 
2. Accept minutes - January 19, 2020 - City Commission Workshop 

8. REPORTS 
1. Building Permits Report - January 2021 
2. Code Enforcement Report - NIA 
3. Financial Report - January 2021 
4. Library Report - NIA 
5. Polk County Fire Rescue - N/A 
6. Polk Sheriff's Report - January 2021 
7. Public Works Report - January 2021 
8. Utilities Report - December 2020/January 2021 

C. OTHER 



City Commission Meeting 
February 15, 2021 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for: 

1. Accept minutes - January 19, 2021 - City Commission Workshop 
2. Accept minutes - January 19, 2021 - City Commission Regular Meeting 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Accept minutes -January 19, 2021 - City Commission Workshop 
2. Accept minutes - January 19, 2021 - City Commission Regular Meeting 

ANALYSIS: NIA 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes 



CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP MINUTES 

January 19, 2021 

Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

ROLL CALL - Kelly Downing 

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Wayne 
Harper, Commissioner Randy Carroll, and City Attorney Thomas Cloud 

Absent: City Manager Patricia Jackson and Commissioner Micheal T. Blethen 

Agenda Review - City Commission Meeting - January 191 2021 

Mayor LaCascia reiterated the purpose of the Workshop is to discuss items being 
presented on the Regular Meeting Agenda and address any questions or concerns and 
ultimately be able to proceed in a more efficient manner at the Regular Meeting. 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Public Hearing - Ordinance 2020-11 
Mayor LaCascia briefly discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, providing for the 
amendment of the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan of Polk City, Florida, 
specifically, changing the Future Land Use Designation of Approximately 3.22 acres 
located in the Northwest corner of the Intersection of Commonwealth Avenue North (SR 
33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North from Commercial to Residential Medium (Parcel 
Number 25-26-33-296500-102020); and transmitting said amendment to the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity for notification; providing for severability; and 
providing for an effective date. Second and Final Reading 

Jennifer Godo-Salisbury (CFRPC) addressed questions or concerns by the Commission. 

Vice Mayor Kimsey asked if anything had changed with this Ordinance since the First 
Reading. 

Mayor LaCascia responded the only change was the request by Vice Mayor Kimsey to 
provide ample notice to the residents via yard signs. 

No further questions. 

Public Hearing - Ordinance 2020-12 
Mayor LaCascia discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the official Polk 
City Zoning Map to change the zoning on approximately 18.71 acres located at the 
Northwest corner of Commonwealth Avenue (SR 33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North 



from R-4 Mixed Residential Use and Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit 
Development to allow for 168 Multi-family dwelling units; providing for severability; 
providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for an effective date. Second 
and Final Reading 

There have been no changes since the First Reading in December. 

City Attorney Cloud spoke briefly about the suggested calendar year language as 
discussed during the First Reading, which can be amended tonight. The recommended 
language has been provided . 

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 

During the 7pm Regular Meeting, Attorney Cloud will present an Emergency Ordinance 
2021-01. This Ordinance is regarding having Electronic Meetings due to the rise in 
COVID-19 cases. 

After lengthy discussion, Mayor LaCascia recessed the meeting (6:10 pm) in an effort to 
call City Manager Jackson regarding the Emergency Ordinance before it is presented at 
the 7pm Regular Meeting. 

CITY MANAGER ITEMS 

COMMISSIONER ITEMS - None 

ADJOURNMENT-6:10 pm 

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 



CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 

January 19, 2021 

Mayor LaCascia called the Regular Meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

Commissioner Randy Carroll gave the invocation. 

ROLL CALL - Kelly Downing 

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don 
Harper, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Co
and City Attorney Thomas Cloud 

Kimsey, 
mmissio

Commissioner Wayne 
ner Micheal T. Blethen, 

Absent: City Manager Patricia Jackson 

APPROVECONSENTAGENDA 
Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve the December 21, 2020 (City Commission 
Workshop), December 21, 2020 (City Commission Regular Meeting); this motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Carroll. Unanimously approved by Voice Vote. 

PRESENTATION 
Mayor LaCascia read the Proclamation for School Choice Week, January 24-30, 2021 . 
This proclamation will be mailed to the National School Choice Week Office is Southlake, 
TX. 

PUBLIC COMMENT (Items NOT on the Agenda) 

None 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Public Hearing - Ordinance 2020-11 
Mayor LaCascia briefly discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida; amending the 
Future Land Use Map of the City's Comprehensive Plan by changing the Future Land 
Use Designation of approximately 3.22 acres located at the Northwest corner of the 
intersection of Commonwealth Avenue North (SR 33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North 
from Commercial to Residential, transmitting the Amendment and notifying the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity; providing for severability; providing for an effective 
date. Second and Final Reading 

City Attorney Cloud read this Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public 
Hearing. 



Dan Graves (405 North Citrus Grove Boulevard) spoke regarding the future plans of 
Citrus Grove Boulevard as it relates to sewer and how the vehicle traffic would increase 
drastically. 

Mayor LaCascia responded, this is just to allow for a change in the Comprehensive Plan 
as well as a change in Zoning. Mr. Graves' concerns have been duly noted; however, 
there are several criteria that will need to be approved before any further steps can be 
taken. 

Mike Levine (Real Estate Broker representing Property Owner, Dr. Mohamed Elaswad) 
spoke regarding the possible plans for the property. 

Commissioner Blethen discussed his concerns regarding the infrastructure, stressing that 
SR 33 is Polk City's lifeline. Will be voting No. 

Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2020-11 on Second and Final 
Reading; this motion was seconded by Mayor LaCascia. 

Commissioner Blethen stated looking at long-term growth in Polk City, this is a prestigious 
piece of property that has been designated as Commercial and for those folks commuting 
to work on SR 33, we are limited and leaving this as commercial is by far the best thing 
to do. 

Vice Mayor Kimsey does not want to see the traffic increase anymore and will be voting 
no. There will be a sewer line; and everyone on Citrus Grove will be mandated to hook 
up to it. 

City Attorney Cloud stated there would be no mandatory water connection. This parcel 
is a tough development for Commercial right now. 

Commissioner Carroll reiterated that SR 33 is Polk City's lifeline. 

Commissioner Harper stated with the Commercial designation, there will be additional 
traffic in that area and so many accidents. We need to eliminate potential hazards on or 
near that piece of property. This needs to be changed from Commercial to Residential 
designation. 

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Harper - aye, Mayor LaCascia - aye, Commissioner 
Carroll - aye, Commissioner Blethen - nay, Vice Mayor Kimsey
nay 

Motion carried 3/2. 

2 



Public Hearing - Ordinance 2020-12 
Mayor LaCascia briefly discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the 
official Polk City Zoning Map to change the zoning on approximately 18.71 acres located 
at the Northwest corner of Commonwealth Avenue (SR 33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard 
North from R-4 Mixed Residential Use and Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit 
Development to allow for 168 Multi-family dwelling units; providing for severability; 
providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for an effective date. Second 
and Final Reading 

City Attorney Cloud read this Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public 
Hearing. 

Mike Levine (Real Estate Broker for property owner, Dr. Mohamed Elaswad) stated the 
PUD zoning is the most cooperative zoning that can be offered in Polk City. 

Dan Graves (405 North Citrus Grove Boulevard) spoke about the future plans of Citrus 
Grove Boulevard as it relates to the Planned Unit Development (PUD). Is this for Low 
Income Housing? 

Jennifer Godo-Salisbury (CFRPC) responded a PUD is a win-win situation. It is a 
Conditional Zoning and is only allowed when there is a PUD. In this case, there is a 
Conceptual Site Plan that would be adopted with the Ordinance to allow for multi-family 
housing. In no case, does the PUD specifically call out Low Income Housing. That is not 
a tool of a PUD. Opportunities that the PUD provides is limiting access onto Citrus Grove 
Boulevard for safety. A detailed Traffic study will be done and presented to the Planning 
Commission as well as the City Commission. This property is a challenging access issue. 
Thus, the access on Citrus Grove Boulevard. 

Mayor LaCascia inquired about the timeline for when it will become public knowledge as 
to exactly what the property will be used for. 

Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 

City Attorney Cloud mentioned including language in the Ordinance Item #8 (Page 3) to 
read "If a Preliminary Site Plan is not submitted and approved within one (1) year from 
the effective date of this Ordinance, then this Ordinance shall expire and the zoning in 
effect immediately prior to adoption of this ordinance shall take effect and apply to the 
property". 

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2020-12 on Second and Final 
Reading, which will include the addition language provided by City Attorney; this motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Carroll. 

Lengthy discussion ensued . 

3 



Roll Call Vote: Vice Mayor Kimsey-nay, Commissioner Harper-aye, Commissioner 
Blethen - aye, Commissioner Blethen-aye, Commissioner Carroll -
aye, Mayor LaCascia - aye 

Motion carried 4/1. 

CITY MANAGER ITEMS - None 

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 

As mentioned during the 6pm Workshop, City Attorney Cloud discussed Emergency 
Ordinance 2021-01 - An Ordinance of the Polk City, Florida, authorizing the City 
Manager to make provisions for electronic attendance by elected and appointed officials 
at City meetings during periods of declared public health emergency; providing for 
severability; providing for repealer; providing for an effective date. 

After lengthy discussion and phone consultation with City Manager Jackson, Motion by 
Commissioner Blethen to approve Emergency Ordinance 2021-01; this motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Harper. 

Roll Call Vote: Vice Mayor Kimsey-aye, Commissioner Harper-aye, Commissioner 
Blethen-aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye, Mayor LaCascia-aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 

COMMISSIONER ITEMS 
Vice Mayor Kimsey - None 
Commissioner Carroll - None 
Commissioner Harper - Urging citizens to come to City Commission Meetings. Looking 
for innovative ideas for events in Polk City. 
Commissioner Blethen - Investigate a better sound system in the Commission 
Chamber. 
Mayor LaCascia - None 

ANNOUNCEMENTS - None 

ADJOURNMENT - 8.24 pm 

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

4 



City Commission Meeting 
February 15, 2021 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Monthly Department Reports for: 

1. Building Permits Report - January 2021 
2. Code Enforcement Report - N/A 
3. Financial Report - January 2021 
4. Library Report - N/A 
5. Polk County Fire Rescue - N/A 
6. Polk Sheriff's Report - January 2021 
7. Public Works Report - January 2021 
8. Utilities Report - December 2020/January 2021 

ANALYSIS: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda 



COMMERCIAL 

Permit Nu ber 

BC-2021-60 

MECHANICAL 

Permit Number 

BT-2021-411 

BT-2021-601 

RE-ROOF 

Permit Number 

BT-2021-117 

BT-2021-286 

BT-2021-31 

BT-2021-780 

BT-2021-953 

RESIDENTIAL 

Permit Number 

BR-2021-314 

BR-2021-378 

BR-2021-447 

BR-2021-8 

Polk City Permits Added 
From: 01/01/21 To: 01/31/2021 

Address 

205 SE BROADWAY POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Address 

305 CLEARWATER POLK CITY, FL 33868 

7757 BERKLEY POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Address 
217 GREENLEAF LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

205 SE BROADWAY POLK CITY, FL 33868 

511 ROSEWOOD LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

345 BAYBERRY POLK CITY, FL 33868 

713 3RD POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Address 

527 ROSEWOOD POLK CITY, FL 33868 

648 MEANDERING POLK CITY, FL 33868 

614 GORDON POLK CITY, FL 33868 

258 SUNSET BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Declared Value Date Added 

10,000.00 01/20/2021 

$10,000.00 

Date Added 

9,800.00 01/11/2021 

12,557.00 01/14/2021 

$22,357.00 

Declared Value D t Added 

13,900.00 01/05/2021 

5,000.00 01/08/2021 

5,000.00 01/04/2021 

11,900.00 01/18/2021 

2,400.00 01/18/2021 

$38,200.00 

DeQtared Valu~ D~mAdded 

2,480.00 01/15/2021 

5,000.00 01/18/2021 

17,419.00 01/20/2021 

2,580.00 01/04/2021 

Subtotal: $27,479.00 

Grand Total: $98,036.00 

Polk City Permits Page1 of 1 2/10/2021 7:37 AM 

https://98,036.00
https://27,479.00
https://2,580.00
https://17,419.00
https://5,000.00
https://2,480.00
https://38,200.00
https://2,400.00
https://11,900.00
https://5,000.00
https://5,000.00
https://13,900.00
https://22,357.00
https://12,557.00
https://9,800.00
https://10,000.00
https://10,000.00


POLK CITY 02/09/202115:10 Page 1 of 1Simple Balance Sheet gb614_pg.php/Job No: 58077 USER: JOANNAK 

For Fiscal Year: 2021 thru Fiscal Month: Jan, for Fund: 01 

Account Account Ending Net 

NUlllber Title Bal Amount 
01-101-100 

01-101-800 

01-101-801 

01-101-802 

01-101-803 

01-101-990 

01-102-100 

01-115-100 

01-115-120 

01-115-200 

01-153-302 

01-153-303 

01-160-902 

01-160-903 

01 - 202-100 

01-202-900 

01-208-300 

01-208-310 

01-208-320 

01-208-330 

01-217-200 

01-218-100 

01-218-200 

01-218-300 

01-218-320 

01-218-4 00 

01-218-410 

01-243-100 

01-245-100 

01-271-100 

Cash - Checking 

Cash - GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees 

Cash - GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees 

Cash - GF Recreation Impact Fees 

Cash - GF Gen Gov't Facilities Impact Fees 

Van Fleet Cycling Challenge 

Cash on Hand 

Accounts Receivable - Utilities 

Accounts Receivable - Local Bus Licenses 

Accounts Receivable - Year End 

Restricted Cash - New Local Opt Gas Tax 

Restricted Cash - Building and Codes 

Reserve Account 

Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 

** TOTAL ASSET** 

Accounts Payable 

Customer Deposits 

Due to County - Impact Fees 

Due to DCA - Bldg Permit Surcharge 

Due to Dept of Business - License Fees 

Due to PCSO - Police Education Revenue 

Accrued Sales Tax 

Payroll Taxes Payable 

FRS Retirement Payable 

Health Plan Payable 

Supplemental Insurance Payable 

Dental Plan Payable 

Vision Plan Payable 

• • TOTAL LIABILITY** 

Encumbrances Placed 

Reserved for Encumbrances 

•• TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 

Fund Balance Unreserved 

•• TOTAL EQUITY** 

** TOTAL REVENUE** 

• • TOTAL EXPENSE** 

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 

2,751,951.50 

221,948.73 

133,781.85 

400,029.61 

416,727.28 

859.09 

575.00 

6,421.18-

3,540.00 

147,890.95-

175,983.39 

160,917.77 

177,764.59 

62,924.00 

4,352,690.68 

987 . 18-

3 , 435 . 00 

45,995 . 32 

1,128.77 

755.35 

36. 72 

39.25 

0.02-

102.82-

1,804.12 

3,287.58 

89 . 66 

1,087.24 

56 , 568.99 

23,477.05 

23,477.05-

0.00 

3,637,015.60 

3,637,015 . 60 

1,467,286 . 75 

808 , 180 . 66 

4,352,690 . 68 


















































	Structure Bookmarks
	POLK CITY City Commission Meeting (7 pm) 
	POLK CITY City Commission Meeting (7 pm) 
	February 15, 2021 Polk City Government Center 123 Broadway Blvd., SE 
	CALL TO ORDER -Mayor Joe LaCascia INVOCATION -Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -Mayor Joe LaCascia ROLL CALL -Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS PUBLIC COMMENT -ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit comments to 3 minutes) 
	AGENDA 
	1. General Discussion -Updates 
	CITY MANAGER ITEMS 
	CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS COMMISSIONER ITEMS 
	Vice Mayor Kimsey Commissioner Blethen Commissioner Carroll Commissioner Harper Mayor LaCascia 
	ANNOUNCEMENTS ADJOURNMENT 
	Please note: Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Commission with respect to any matter considered during this meeting, he or she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act, a person with disabilities needing any special accommodations to participate in city meetings shou
	CONSENT AGENDA February 15, 2021 
	MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion, and add it to the regular agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever category best applies to the subject. 
	A. CITY CLERK 
	A. CITY CLERK 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept minutes -January 19, 2021 -City Commission Meeting 

	2. 
	2. 
	Accept minutes -January 19, 2020 -City Commission Workshop 


	8. REPORTS 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Building Permits Report -January 2021 

	2. 
	2. 
	Code Enforcement Report -NIA 

	3. 
	3. 
	Financial Report -January 2021 

	4. 
	4. 
	Library Report -NIA 

	5. 
	5. 
	Polk County Fire Rescue -N/A 

	6. 
	6. 
	Polk Sheriff's Report -January 2021 

	7. 
	7. 
	Public Works Report -January 2021 

	8. 
	8. 
	Utilities Report -December 2020/January 2021 



	C. OTHER 
	C. OTHER 
	City Commission Meeting February 15, 2021 
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept minutes -January 19, 2021 -City Commission Workshop 

	2. 
	2. 
	Accept minutes -January 19, 2021 -City Commission Regular Meeting 


	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval ATTACHMENTS: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept minutes -January 19, 2021 -City Commission Workshop 

	2. 
	2. 
	Accept minutes -January 19, 2021 -City Commission Regular Meeting 


	ANALYSIS: NIA STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes 
	CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP MINUTES 
	January 19, 2021 
	Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. ROLL CALL -Kelly Downing 
	Present: 
	Present: 
	Present: 
	Mayor Joe 
	LaCascia, 
	Vice 
	Mayor Don 
	Kimsey, 
	Commissioner Wayne 

	TR
	Harper, Commissioner Randy Carroll, and City Attorney Thomas Cloud 

	Absent: 
	Absent: 
	City Manager Patricia Jackson and Commissioner Micheal T. Blethen 


	2021 
	Agenda Review -City Commission Meeting -January 19
	1 

	Mayor LaCascia reiterated the purpose of the Workshop is to discuss items being presented on the Regular Meeting Agenda and address any questions or concerns and ultimately be able to proceed in a more efficient manner at the Regular Meeting. 
	ORDER OF BUSINESS 
	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2020-11 
	Mayor LaCascia briefly discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, providing for the amendment of the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan of Polk City, Florida, specifically, changing the Future Land Use Designation of Approximately 3.22 acres located in the Northwest corner of the Intersection of Commonwealth Avenue North (SR 
	33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North from Commercial to Residential Medium (Parcel Number 25-26-33-296500-102020); and transmitting said amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for notification; providing for severability; and providing for an effective date. Second and Final Reading 
	Jennifer Godo-Salisbury (CFRPC) addressed questions or concerns by the Commission. 
	Vice Mayor Kimsey asked if anything had changed with this Ordinance since the First Reading. 
	Mayor LaCascia responded the only change was the request by Vice Mayor Kimsey to provide ample notice to the residents via yard signs. 
	No further questions. 
	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2020-12 
	Mayor LaCascia discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the official Polk City Zoning Map to change the zoning on approximately 18.71 acres located at the Northwest corner of Commonwealth Avenue (SR 33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North 
	Mayor LaCascia discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the official Polk City Zoning Map to change the zoning on approximately 18.71 acres located at the Northwest corner of Commonwealth Avenue (SR 33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North 
	from R-4 Mixed Residential Use and Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit Development to allow for 168 Multi-family dwelling units; providing for severability; providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for an effective date. Second and Final Reading 

	There have been no changes since the First Reading in December. 
	City Attorney Cloud spoke briefly about the suggested calendar year language as discussed during the First Reading, which can be amended tonight. The recommended language has been provided. 

	CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 
	CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 
	During the 7pm Regular Meeting, Attorney Cloud will present an Emergency Ordinance 2021-01. This Ordinance is regarding having Electronic Meetings due to the rise in COVID-19 cases. 
	After lengthy discussion, Mayor LaCascia recessed the meeting (6:10 pm) in an effort to call City Manager Jackson regarding the Emergency Ordinance before it is presented at the 7pm Regular Meeting. 
	CITY MANAGER ITEMS 
	COMMISSIONER ITEMS -None 
	ADJOURNMENT-6:10 pm 
	Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
	January 19, 2021 
	Mayor LaCascia called the Regular Meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Commissioner Randy Carroll gave the invocation. ROLL CALL -Kelly Downing 
	Present: 
	Present: 
	Present: 
	Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Harper, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Coand City Attorney Thomas Cloud 
	Kimsey, mmissio
	Commissioner Wayne ner Micheal T. Blethen, 

	Absent: 
	Absent: 
	City Manager Patricia Jackson 


	APPROVECONSENTAGENDA Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve the December 21, 2020 (City Commission Workshop), December 21, 2020 (City Commission Regular Meeting); this motion was seconded by Commissioner Carroll. Unanimously approved by Voice Vote. 
	PRESENTATION Mayor LaCascia read the Proclamation for School Choice Week, January 24-30, 2021 . This proclamation will be mailed to the National School Choice Week Office is Southlake, TX. 
	PUBLIC COMMENT (Items NOT on the Agenda) 
	None 
	ORDER OF BUSINESS 
	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2020-11 Mayor LaCascia briefly discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida; amending the Future Land Use Map of the City's Comprehensive Plan by changing the Future Land Use Designation of approximately 3.22 acres located at the Northwest corner of the intersection of Commonwealth Avenue North (SR 33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North from Commercial to Residential, transmitting the Amendment and notifying the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity; providing for severability
	City Attorney Cloud read this Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. 
	Dan Graves (405 North Citrus Grove Boulevard) spoke regarding the future plans of Citrus Grove Boulevard as it relates to sewer and how the vehicle traffic would increase drastically. 
	Mayor LaCascia responded, this is just to allow for a change in the Comprehensive Plan as well as a change in Zoning. Mr. Graves' concerns have been duly noted; however, there are several criteria that will need to be approved before any further steps can be taken. 
	Mike Levine (Real Estate Broker representing Property Owner, Dr. Mohamed Elaswad) spoke regarding the possible plans for the property. 
	Commissioner Blethen discussed his concerns regarding the infrastructure, stressing that SR 33 is Polk City's lifeline. Will be voting No. 
	Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 
	Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2020-11 on Second and Final Reading; this motion was seconded by Mayor LaCascia. 
	Commissioner Blethen stated looking at long-term growth in Polk City, this is a prestigious piece of property that has been designated as Commercial and for those folks commuting to work on SR 33, we are limited and leaving this as commercial is by far the best thing to do. 
	Vice Mayor Kimsey does not want to see the traffic increase anymore and will be voting no. There will be a sewer line; and everyone on Citrus Grove will be mandated to hook up to it. 
	City Attorney Cloud stated there would be no mandatory water connection. This parcel is a tough development for Commercial right now. 
	Commissioner Carroll reiterated that SR 33 is Polk City's lifeline. 
	Commissioner Harper stated with the Commercial designation, there will be additional traffic in that area and so many accidents. We need to eliminate potential hazards on or near that piece of property. This needs to be changed from Commercial to Residential 
	designation. 
	designation. 
	designation. 

	Roll Call Vote: 
	Roll Call Vote: 
	Commissioner Harper 
	-

	aye, Mayor LaCascia 
	-

	aye, Commissioner 

	TR
	Carroll 
	-

	aye, Commissioner Blethen 
	-

	nay, Vice Mayor Kimsey


	nay 

	Motion carried 3/2. 
	Motion carried 3/2. 
	2 

	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2020-12 
	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2020-12 
	Mayor LaCascia briefly discussed this Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the official Polk City Zoning Map to change the zoning on approximately 18.71 acres located at the Northwest corner of Commonwealth Avenue (SR 33) and Citrus Grove Boulevard North from R-4 Mixed Residential Use and Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit Development to allow for 168 Multi-family dwelling units; providing for severability; providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for an effective date. Second an
	City Attorney Cloud read this Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. 
	Mike Levine (Real Estate Broker for property owner, Dr. Mohamed Elaswad) stated the PUD zoning is the most cooperative zoning that can be offered in Polk City. 
	Dan Graves (405 North Citrus Grove Boulevard) spoke about the future plans of Citrus Grove Boulevard as it relates to the Planned Unit Development (PUD). Is this for Low Income Housing? 
	Jennifer Godo-Salisbury (CFRPC) responded a PUD is a win-win situation. It is a Conditional Zoning and is only allowed when there is a PUD. In this case, there is a Conceptual Site Plan that would be adopted with the Ordinance to allow for multi-family housing. In no case, does the PUD specifically call out Low Income Housing. That is not a tool of a PUD. Opportunities that the PUD provides is limiting access onto Citrus Grove Boulevard for safety. A detailed Traffic study will be done and presented to the 
	Mayor LaCascia inquired about the timeline for when it will become public knowledge as to exactly what the property will be used for. 
	Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 
	City Attorney Cloud mentioned including language in the Ordinance Item #8 (Page 3) to read "If a Preliminary Site Plan is not submitted and approved within one (1) year from the effective date of this Ordinance, then this Ordinance shall expire and the zoning in effect immediately prior to adoption of this ordinance shall take effect and apply to the property". 
	Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2020-12 on Second and Final Reading, which will include the addition language provided by City Attorney; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Carroll. 
	Lengthy discussion ensued . 
	3 
	Roll Call Vote: Vice Mayor Kimsey-nay, Commissioner Harper-aye, Commissioner Blethen -aye, Commissioner Blethen-aye, Commissioner Carroll aye, Mayor LaCascia -aye 
	-

	Motion carried 4/1. 
	CITY MANAGER ITEMS -None 
	CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 
	As mentioned during the 6pm Workshop, City Attorney Cloud discussed Emergency Ordinance 2021-01 -An Ordinance of the Polk City, Florida, authorizing the City Manager to make provisions for electronic attendance by elected and appointed officials at City meetings during periods of declared public health emergency; providing for severability; providing for repealer; providing for an effective date. 
	After lengthy discussion and phone consultation with City Manager Jackson, Motion by Commissioner Blethen to approve Emergency Ordinance 2021-01; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Harper. 
	Roll Call Vote: Vice Mayor Kimsey-aye, Commissioner Harper-aye, Commissioner Blethen-aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye, Mayor LaCascia-aye 
	Motion carried unanimously. 
	COMMISSIONER ITEMS Vice Mayor Kimsey -None Commissioner Carroll -None Commissioner Harper -Urging citizens to come to City Commission Meetings. Looking for innovative ideas for events in Polk City. Commissioner Blethen -Investigate a better sound system in the Commission Chamber. Mayor LaCascia -None 
	ANNOUNCEMENTS -None 
	ADJOURNMENT -8.24 pm 
	Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	4 
	City Commission Meeting February 15, 2021 
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports 
	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval. 
	ATTACHMENTS: 
	Monthly Department Reports for: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Building Permits Report -January 2021 

	2. 
	2. 
	Code Enforcement Report -N/A 

	3. 
	3. 
	Financial Report -January 2021 

	4. 
	4. 
	Library Report -N/A 

	5. 
	5. 
	Polk County Fire Rescue -N/A 

	6. 
	6. 
	Polk Sheriff's Report -January 2021 

	7. 
	7. 
	Public Works Report -January 2021 

	8. 
	8. 
	Utilities Report -December 2020/January 2021 


	ANALYSIS: 
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda 
	COMMERCIAL 
	COMMERCIAL 
	Permit Nu ber 
	BC-2021-60 

	MECHANICAL 
	MECHANICAL 
	Permit Number 
	BT-2021-411 
	BT-2021-601 

	RE-ROOF 
	RE-ROOF 
	Permit Number 
	BT-2021-117 BT-2021-286 BT-2021-31 BT-2021-780 BT-2021-953 

	RESIDENTIAL 
	RESIDENTIAL 
	Permit Number 
	BR-2021-314 BR-2021-378 BR-2021-447 BR-2021-8 

	Polk City Permits Added 
	Polk City Permits Added 
	From: 01/01/21 To: 01/31/2021 
	Address 205 SE BROADWAY POLK CITY, FL 33868 Subtotal: 
	Address 305 CLEARWATER POLK CITY, FL 33868 7757 BERKLEY POLK CITY, FL 33868 
	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	Address 217 GREENLEAF LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 
	205 SE BROADWAY POLK CITY, FL 33868 511 ROSEWOOD LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 345 BAYBERRY POLK CITY, FL 33868 
	713 3RD POLK CITY, FL 33868 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	Address 527 ROSEWOOD POLK CITY, FL 33868 648 MEANDERING POLK CITY, FL 33868 614 GORDON POLK CITY, FL 33868 258 SUNSET BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 
	Declared Value Date Added 
	01/20/2021 
	10,000.00 


	$
	$
	10,000.00 

	Date Added 
	01/11/2021 01/14/2021 
	9,800.00 
	12,557.00 


	$
	$
	22,357.00 

	Declared Value D t Added 
	01/05/2021 01/08/2021 01/04/2021 01/18/2021 01/18/2021 
	13,900.00 
	5,000.00 
	5,000.00 
	11,900.00 
	2,400.00 


	$
	$
	38,200.00 

	DeQtared Valu~ D~mAdded 
	01/15/2021 01/18/2021 01/20/2021 01/04/2021 
	2,480.00 
	5,000.00 
	17,419.00 
	2,580.00 


	Subtotal: $
	Subtotal: $
	27,479.00 

	Grand Total: $
	98,036.00 

	Figure
	Polk City Permits Page1 of 1 2/10/2021 7:37 AM 
	POLK CITY 
	02/09/202115:10 Page 1 of 1
	Simple Balance Sheet 
	Simple Balance Sheet 
	gb614_pg.php/Job No: 58077 USER: JOANNAK For Fiscal Year: 2021 thru Fiscal Month: Jan, for Fund: 01 
	Account Account Ending Net NUlllber Title Bal Amount 
	01-101-100 01-101-800 01-101-801 01-101-802 01-101-803 01-101-990 01-102-100 01-115-100 01-115-120 01-115-200 01-153-302 01-153-303 01-160-902 01-160-903 
	01-202-100 01-202-900 01-208-300 01-208-310 01-208-320 01-208-330 01-217-200 01-218-100 01-218-200 01-218-300 01-218-320 01-218-4 00 01-218-410 
	01-243-100 01-245-100 
	01-271-100 
	Cash -Checking Cash -GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees Cash -GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees Cash -GF Recreation Impact Fees Cash -GF Gen Gov't Facilities Impact Fees Van Fleet Cycling Challenge Cash on Hand Accounts Receivable -Utilities Accounts Receivable -Local Bus Licenses Accounts Receivable -Year End Restricted Cash -New Local Opt Gas Tax Restricted Cash -Building and Codes 
	Reserve Account 
	Reserve Acct -Emergencies & Contingency ** TOTAL ASSET** 
	Accounts Payable Customer Deposits Due to County -Impact Fees Due to DCA -Bldg Permit Surcharge 
	Due to Dept of Business -License Fees 
	Due to PCSO -Police Education Revenue Accrued Sales Tax Payroll Taxes Payable FRS Retirement Payable Health Plan Payable Supplemental Insurance Payable Dental Plan Payable Vision Plan Payable • • TOTAL LIABILITY** 
	Encumbrances Placed 
	Reserved for Encumbrances 
	•• TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 
	Fund Balance Unreserved •• TOTAL EQUITY** 
	** TOTAL REVENUE** 
	• • TOTAL EXPENSE** 
	TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 
	2,751,951.50 
	2,751,951.50 
	2,751,951.50 

	221,948.73 
	221,948.73 

	133,781.85 
	133,781.85 

	400,029.61 
	400,029.61 

	416,727.28 
	416,727.28 

	859.09 
	859.09 

	575.00 
	575.00 

	6,421.18
	6,421.18
	-


	3,540.00 
	3,540.00 

	147,890.95
	147,890.95
	-


	175,983.39 
	175,983.39 

	160,917.77 
	160,917.77 

	177,764.59 
	177,764.59 

	62,924.00 
	62,924.00 

	TR
	4,352,690.68 

	987 . 18
	987 . 18
	-


	3 , 435 . 00 
	3 , 435 . 00 

	45,995 .32 
	45,995 .32 

	1,128.77 
	1,128.77 

	755.35 
	755.35 

	36. 72 
	36. 72 

	39.25 
	39.25 

	0.02
	0.02
	-


	102.82
	102.82
	-


	1,804.12 
	1,804.12 

	3,287.58 
	3,287.58 

	89 . 66 
	89 . 66 

	1,087.24 
	1,087.24 

	TR
	56 , 568.99 

	23,477.05 
	23,477.05 

	23,477.05
	23,477.05
	-


	TR
	0.00 

	3,637,015.60 
	3,637,015.60 

	TR
	3,637,015 . 60 

	TR
	1,467,286 . 75 

	TR
	808 , 180 . 66 

	TR
	4,352,690 . 68 


	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure







